the Church of

The Church of Ayioi
Apostoloi (Holy Apostles) is
located on the northeast side
of the main square of Pyrgi,
the largest medieval village
of southern Chios. Pyrgi first
appears in a 14th century
(1362) document, while in
1422 it is explicitly noted as
a fortified settlement in a
map by Florentine traveler
Christoforo Buondelmonti.
Its architectural form
follows, albeit in a smaller
scale, the prototype of the ¥4y
Katholikon of Nea Moni, which ':'
dates to the mid-11th century,
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and belongs to the octagonal church architecture typology.

The main element of this particular typology is the octagonal
structure supporting the dome; the main difference with the
church of the Holy Apostles is that here the longitudinal axis is
particularly accentuated with the use of barrel vaults towards
the bema to the east, as well as to the west, instead of conches,
as in the case of Nea Moni.

The interior articulation of the church is tripartite; it
is comprised of the bema, with its projecting semi-circular
apse, the main church, and the narthex, which was originally
separated from the main church by a wall that does not
survive today. The main entrance to the church is on the west
side of the narthex, while a secondary door on the south
leads out onto a courtyard that surrounds the church on three
sides. A deep blind arch, with a double row of quatrefoils
decorating its brick arch, is found on the north wall of
the narthex. This must be an arcosolium, that is, a space
specifically built to house burials, usually reserved for the
patrons of the church.

Probably the most striking feature of the church is the
intricate articulation of its facades and their rich decorative
brickwork. Four blind arches are opened on the long facades,
each crowned by a double brick arch. Dentil courses, green

Towoypaoieg oto vétlo 1oixo Tou vaou
Southern wall of the main church. Wall paintings

quatrefoils in various layouts, and glazed bowls adorn the
facades, rendering them lively and colorful. The two domes
of the church, made entirely of bricks, have double marble
colonettes and are built employing the so-called “recessed
brick” technique.

An inscription on the northwest pilaster of the church
notes that the church was erected from the ground in the year
1546 by prient-monk Symeon, and, later on,

Bishop of Chios. The same date is also inscribed on the marble
lintel over the entrance. Obviously, an extensive repair of the
church took place in that year, though not its actual erection.
The actual building date of the church, based on architectural
features, must be placed in the Late Byzantine period

(14 century).

The interior of the church is completely covered
with frescoes. An inscription on the north wall of the main
church informs us that the frescoes were executed in the
year 1665, and provides the name of the painter as Antonios
Kynegos from Crete. The Pantocrator, surrounded by nine
angels, dominates the central dome. Scenes from the
Twelve Feasts, the four Evangelists and six-winged angels
cover the surfaces around the base of the dome.

The side walls of the main church are covered with
scenes from the life and miracles of the Holy Apostles,

Peter and Paul, to which the church is dedicated, while the
west wall is decorated with the scene of the Last Judgment.
The hemispherical vault of the narthex dome is decorated
with the image of the Virgin Mary, of the Vlacherna type,

with twelve accompanying angels. The scenes that cover the
interior surfaces of the dome drum, between the windows,
are antecedent images of the Virgin Mary and the Incarnation,
while the arches supporting the dome retain two out of a total
of twenty-four scenes of the “oikos” parts of the Akathist
Hymn.

The artwork of Antonios Kynegos, with its lively colors
and rich decorative motifs that envelop the main scenes, is
characterized by a strong vernacular style that also borrows
elements from the Cretan School of painting. Still, western art
influence is also evident in the paintings, particularly in the “Ecce
Homo” scene in the Diakonikon conch of the bema.
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0 vaog twv Ayiwv
AnoctéAwv Bpioketal otn
BopeloavatoAikn nAeupd tng

nAateiag tou Mupyiou, T0
onolo eival to yeyaAutepo
anoé ta JEoALWVIKA Xwpla Tng
voTtiag Xiou. H Unapé&n tou
avagEpetal oe £yypapo Tou
T4ou at. (1362) , evwd 10 1422
ONPELOVETAL WG OXUPWHEVOG
OIKIOHOG 0€ XApTn TOU
DOAwpevTvou nepinyntn
Christoforo Buondelmonti.

H apxitektovikh popgpn
TOU Vaou £xel wg npdtuno,
aMAG o€ pIKpOTEPN KAIHaKA,

10 KaBoAiko tng Néag Movng,
T0 0Moio KTioTNKE 0Ta Péaa
ToU 110U alwva Kat avnKel
OTOV OPXITEKTOVIKO TUMO TV
OKTAYWVIKWYV VawV. Baoikd
YVWpPLoHa autou Tou TUnou
elval n oktaywvikn otnpign tou

TPOUAOU TWV VAWV, apXITEKTOVIKN AUon nou akoAouBeital kal oto
vao twv Ayiwv AnootoAwy, e th Slagopd 0Tt 0 Kata pnkog afovag
ebw eivat 1laitepa Toviopévog Pe Tn Slapdpeuon Kapapwy, avti
KOyXwV 0nwg ato kaBoAiko tng Néag Movng, npog 1o lEpo Kat Npog
10 dutika.

0 vaog eowteptkd SlapBpwvetal o tpia pépn. X1o lepd
Bnpa, pe npoe€éxouaa npIKUKAIKA ayiba, Tov Kupiwg vad Kat
Tov vapBnka, nou apxikda xwptddtav and tov Kupiwg vad pe
Toixonotia, nou onpepa opwg Sev owdetal. £tn SUTIKN NAgupd
Tou vapBnka avoiyetat n KUpla €ic0d0og oto vaod, evw pia
deutepevouoa BUpa otn votia nAeupd Tou, odnyel otov alAelo
XWPO nou neptBAAAel To vaod and Tig TPELG NAEUPEG Tou.

Zto naxog tou Bopelou Toixou Tou vapBnka, undpxel fabu
ayidwypa, to NAivBivo 6o Tou onoiou Koopeital pe S1nAn oepa
@lahootopiwy. Mpokettat yia apkoadAio, Xwpo €18IKA Slagoppwpévo
Y10 TOV EVTIAPIAOHO oUVNBWGE TwV KINTOPWV TWV VAWV.

AuTto nou evtunwoladel Pe TNV NPWIN Patid oto vao
eival n nepitexvn S1GNAaon Twv e§WTEPIKWV TOU GYPEWV HE TOV
nAoUalo KepaponAaoTiké SIGKoapo. LTIG HAKPIEG TOU NAEUPEG
Slapoppwvovtal téaoepa TUPAd agidwpata, Nou eNCTEPOVTAL
pe 6inAd endMinAa nAivBiva to€a. 08ovtwTéG tawvieg, npdoiva
(PlOA0OTOpI OE 1APOPOUG OXNHATIOHOUG Kal NIVAKIa KOoHoUV TIG
oyelg, Npoabdidovtag oe autég {uvTavia Kat XpwHatikn notkiAia. Ot
600 oAdnAvBot poUAot Tou vaou pe Toug SinAoUG Hapudpivoug
Kloviokoug, eivat Sopnpévol pe o oUoTna TG Aeyopevng
«KPUHKEVNG NAivBou». EVvaAaOOOEVEG GEIPEG OKOUPOKOKKIVLOV

nAivBwv tonoBetouvtal BaButepa and nv empdvela Ing Toixonoliag
Kal KaAuntovtal pe podoxpwio Koviapa, Snyioupywvtag kat

QUTOV TOV TPOMO PWTOOKIACELG KAl XPWHATIKESG avTIBETELC, Nou
NPooBETOUV OTO YEVIKOTEPO EVIUMWOIAKO ANOTENECHA.

Enmwypagn otn Bopelodutikn napactada tou vaou
avapépet nv ek BaBpwv avéyepan tou to £1og 1564 and tov
lEpOUOGVAxo LUPEWY, NponyoUpevo tng Néag Movng Kat JeTEnelta
MntponoAitn tng Xiou. H id1a xpovoloyla undpxet xapaypévn
Kal oto pappdptvo unépBupo tng eloddou. Mpogavwg, T xpovid
QuTA NPAyHaTononBnKe EKTETAPEVN ENOKEUN TOU vaoU Kal Oxt
n avéyepon tou. H i&puon tou vaou pe BAon ta apXITEKTOVIKA
Tou otoixeia Ba npénet va tonoBetnBel otoug uatepofudaviivoug
xpovoug (140 aL.).

To eowTtepIKo6 TOU vaou eival katdypago. Entypapn ato
Bopelo Toixo Tou Kupiwg vaou, pag NANpo@opei yla to £10G
ayloypdgnong nou eivat to 1665, kaBwg Kat yia 1o 6vopa Tou
{wypdpou, Tou Avtwviou KuvnyoU and tv Kpntn. 1o nyiogaiplo
ToU TpoUAou deonddel o Maviokpdtopag, SopupopoUpevog ano
eVvEa ayyéNoue. ¢ KABeTeg Kat Kofheg enpdaveleg yUpw and tn
Bdon tou Tpollovy, elkovidoval oknveg and 1o AwdekdopTo, ol
téooepig Euayyehiotég kat E§antépuya. LT nAdyleg Toixonolieg Tou
KUpiwg vaou elkovoypagouvtal oknveg and 1o Bio kat ta Balpata
Twv Ayiwv Anootohwy Métpou Kat MavAou, 0To Gvopa Twv onoiwv
TIHATAL 0 VAOG, £VA) TN SUTIKN TolXomnolia Koopel n napdataon tng
Aeutépag MNapouaiag. Lo npiogaiplo tou TpoUAicKou ato vapBnka,
elkovietal n Mavayia otov t0no tng BAaxepvitooag pe dwdeka
oepBidovteg ayyéloug. Ot oKnVEG NMou owBnkav oto
tUpnavo tou TpolAou, avapeoa ota napdbupa,
anotehoUv npoesikovioelg tng Mavayiag Kat tng
Evoapkwong, evw ota to€a otnpiEng tou tpoUAou
Slatnpouvtal 6Uo ano TG EIKOCITETOEPIG NAPACTACELG
TWV «oikwv» Tou AkaBiotou'Ypuvou.

H téxvn tou Avtwviou Kuvnyou, pe ta {wnpd
XpWHATa Kat 1a nAovota Stakoopntikd nou
NAQLoLOVOUV TIG NApAcTAocelg, Xapaktnpidetal and
€vtovo Adiko Ugog nou daveietal otoixeia ing
Kpntikng IxoAng. Xtn {wypa@ikn Tou GpwG eivat
€PQAVEIG Kal ol eMdpdAoelg Tng SUTIKAG TEXVNG,
€NPPON Nou eival opatn Kupiwg otnv napdotacn
g Akpag Taneivwong, otn KOyxn Tou AlaKoviKou,
oto lepd Bnpa.
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